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Gallaher Group Limited

Strategic report

Principal activities and review of business

The strategy of Gallaher Group Linuted (“the Company™) 1s to act as an mvestment holding company within the Japan
Tobacco Inc group of companies (“the Group”™) The Company's prnincipal source of income is dividends from its
investments, namely shares in wholly-owned subsidiaries The timing of such dividends 1s determined by the Boards
of the subsidiartes, 1n comjunction with the Company The Company received a cash dividend in the year of
£1,354,000,000 from s subsidiary Gallaher Overseas (Holdings) Limuted (2012 £ml) Afier accounting for
impamrment charges, administrative expenses, exchange gamns and net financing costs, the Company reported a profit
before tax of £528,888,000 for the year (2012 loss of £5,949,000)

Key performance indicators

Given the nature of the business, the Company’s directors believe that analysis using key performance indicators other
than the results above for the Company 1s not necessary or appropriate for an understanding of the development,
performance or position of the business

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal nsks and uncertainties that affect the Company mclude interest rate risk, liqmdity nsk, foreign currency
risk and credit risk These risks are partly managed at the Group level and partly at an individual business unit level
Further information on financial risk management 1s contained n note 10 to these financial statements

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

John Colton
Director

31 March 2014




Gallaher Group Limited

Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2013

Results and dividends

The Company’s profit and loss account set out on page 6 shows a profit on ordinary activities after taxation of
£529,620,000 (2012 loss of £4,775,000) Ordinary dividends amounting to £1,205,000,000 were declared and paid
duning the year (2012 £nil)

Going Concern

The directors are of the opmion that the Company 15 a going concern and the financial statements have been prepared
on that basis (see note 1)

Charitable and political donations

No polhitical or charitable donations were made 1n the year (2012 £nil)

Directors

A list of the directors, together with dates of appointment and resignation, is given on page | No director held any
interest i the shares of the Company during the year No director had any interests during the year in any material
contract with the Company The Company has made qualifying third party indemmity provistons for the benefit of its
directors which were made during the year and remain 1n force at the date of this report

Auditor
Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

e 50 far as the director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware,
and

» the director has taken ali the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the Compantes Act
2006

Delonte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue n office as auditor.

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

John Colton
Director

31 March 2014



Gallaher Group Limited

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparng the Annual Report and the financial statements w accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requtres the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kmgdom Accounting Standards and apphcable law) Under company law the directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affarrs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that perod In preparing these financtal
statements, the directors are required to

¢ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained m the financial statements, and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s mappropriate to presume that the Company
will continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explam the
Company’s transactions with reasonable accuracy at any time the finrancial posttion of the Company and to enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other 1rregularities




Independent auditor’s report to the members of Gallaher Group Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Gallaher Group Limited for the year ended 31 December 2013 which comprise
the profit and loss account, the balance sheet and the related notes 1 to 16 The financial reporting framework that has
been applied n their preparation 1s apphcable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umted Kingdom Generaily
Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we mught state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 15 to audit and
express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for
Auditors

Scope of the audit of financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Company’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information n the annual report to 1dentify material nconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to 1dentify
any informatton that 1s apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by
us n the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report.

Opimion on the financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

s give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of its profit for the year then
ended,

« have been properly prepared iz accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

e have been prepared mn accordance with the requirements of the Compantes Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed in the Companies Act 2006

[n our opinion the information given i the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report i respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you
if, i our opinion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us, or

¢ the financial statements are not n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

s we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

—

nthony Morrs (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom
31 March 2014




Gallaher Group Limited

Profit and loss account
Year ended 31 December 2013

Income from ordnary shares in subsidiary undertakings
Impairment of investments 1n subsidiary undertakings
Admimistrative expenses

Exchange gans/(losses)

Other income

Interest payable and other finance charges
Interest receivable and other finance income
Finance costs - net

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation

Taxation

Profit/(loss) for the year

The results above relate to continwing operations

Note

4,7

2013 2012
£000 £000
1,354,000 .
(826,000) -
1 -
2,270 (3,643)
- I
(3,801) (5,494)
2,420 3,187
(1,381) (2,307)
528,888 (5,949)
732 1,174
529,620 (4,775)

The Company has no recognised gawns or losses other than the results above and therefore no separate statement of

total recogmised gains and losses has been presented



Gallaher Group Limited

Balance sheet
31 December 2013

Fixed assets
Investments

Current assets
Debtors

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current liabihties
Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital

Capital contribution reserve
Share prenium account
Revaluation reserve

Capital redemption reserve

Profit and loss account

Total equity shareholders’ funds

The financial statements of Gallaher Group Lumited (registered number 03299793) were approved by the Board of

Directors on 31 March 2014
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

John Colton
Director

Note

11
12
12
12
12
12

2013 2012
£000 £000
2,236,697 3,060,427
2,833 4,980
(276,078)  (426,575)
(273.245)  (421,595)
1,963,452 2,638,832
65,714 65,714
7,504 7,504

. 138,381

- 1,756,529

1,872 7,872
1,882,362 662,832
1,963,452 2,638,832




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2013

L Accounting policies

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards The
particular accounting policies adopted are described below

As permitted under section 400 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not prepared consolidated financial
statements since 1t 1s a wholly owned subsidiary undertaking of JT International Group Holding B V (formerly JT
Europe Holding B V ) a company registered (n the Netherlands, which prepares consolidated financial statements

Going concern

The financial position of the Company, its cash flows and liquidity position are described in note 10 to the accounts
This includes an explanation as to how its financial nisk management and exposures to credit sk and Liquidity risk
are managed at the Group level The majority of the creditors classed as due with one year, whilst techmcally
repayable on demand are not expected to be repaid within one year The amounts that are expected to be repaid over
the next year are matched against amounts that are expected to be received from other group companies either as
dividends or repayment of the current recervable balances

The Company 1s a holding company and indirectly owns several subsidiaries which deliver both strong profits and
positive cash flows, notably Gallaher Eimited in the UK, JTI Ireland Limited and JTI Kazakhstan LLC The latest
internal business plans of these companies, together with those of the other subsidiaries, have been considered by the
directors

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation the Company has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concemn basis in
preparing the annual report and accounts

Cash flow statement

The Company has adopted the provisions of Financial Reporting Standard No | {Revised) Accordingly a cash flow
statement has not been included in these financial statements as the Company 15 a wholly owned subsidiary
undertaking of Japan Tobacco Inc , which has informed the directors of its ntention to prepare a consolidated cash
flow statement which incorporates the cash flows of the Company

Revenue recognition

The Company’s income comprises dividends from subsidiary undertakings and interest on loans provided to Group
companies Interest ncome 15 recogmised on an accruals basis and dividends receivable are recognised when the
company’s right to receive payment has been established

Foreign currencies

Transactions 1n foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions Monetary assets and liabilites denominated m foreign currencies are retranslated nto sterling at the
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and any exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account

Dividends

Dividend distributions to shareholders are recognised as a hiability in the Company’s financial statements in the
peniod 1in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or, in the case of interim dividends, when
they are declared

Current taxation

Current taxation, including the UK corporation tax 15 provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using
the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date



Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2013

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Deferred taxation

Deferred tax 15 recogmised n respect of all ttming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date, where transactions or events that result in an obhigation to pay more tax n the future or a nght to pay less
tax in the future, have occurred at the balance sheet date Timing differences are differences between the Group's
taxable profits and its results, as stated in the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in
tax assessments 1n periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements

A net deferred tax asset 1s regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all ava:lable
evidence, 1t can be regarded as more hkely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future
reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the perieds mn which the tuming
differences are expected to reverse based on the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis

Fixed asset investment

Fixed asset investments compnise the Company’s investments i its subsidiaries, which are carmed at historical
valuations, less provision for mmpairment where approprniate The Company’s mvestment in euro denominated
preference shares 1ssued by a subsidiary, Gallaher Limited, are retranslated into sterhng at the exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date and any exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss account

Debtors

Debtors compnse amounts owed by group companies, prepayments and accrued mncome They are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment

Creditors

Creditors are primanly related amounts owed to group compames and they are imtially measured at fair value, and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method

Borrowings

Interest-bearing loans are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs Finance charges, including
premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis to the
income statement using the effective mterest method and are added to the carrying amount of the mstrument to the
extent that they are not settled in the pertod in which they arise All other borrowing costs are recogmsed mn the
mcome statement in the period 1n which they are mcurred

2. Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of the directors of the Company 1s bome by other companies withim the Group and no specific
zllocation 1s made n respect of the services of the directors to the Company Accordingly their emoluments have not
been disclosed in these financial statements

The Company has no employees, other than the directors



Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2013

3. Auditor’s remuneration

The auditor’s remuneration of £5,000 in respect of the statutory audit of the financial statements of the Company has
been bome by Gallaher Limited, a related group company (2012 £5,000) The auditors have received no other
remuneration during the year in respect of services provided to this company

4. Income from ordinary equity shares in subsidiary undertakings
2013 2012
£000 £000
Dividends received and credited to income in the year
Gallaher Overseas (Holdings) Limited 1,354,000 -
5. Finance costs - net
2013 2012
£000 £000
Interest payable and other finance charges
- on loans from Group undertakings (3,801) (5,494)

(3,801) (5,494)
Interest recervable and other finance income

- mcome from preference shares in subsidiary undertaking 2,420 3,187

2,420 3,187
Finance costs - net (1,381) (2,307)
6. Tax on profit/(loss) on erdinary activities

a}) Analysis of the tax charge/(credit) for the year

2013 2012
£000 £000
UK corporation tax
Current tax on profit/(loss) for the year - -
Current year group relief (1,498) (1,993)
Total current tax charge/(credit) (1,498) (1,993)
Deferred tax
Origmation and reversal of iming differences 1n the year 766 819
Tax on profit/{loss) on ordinary activities (732) (1,174)




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2013

6. Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities (continued)
b) Factors affecting the tax (credit)/charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year 15 lower than the standard rate of corporation tax n the UK at 23 25% (2012 24 5%)
The differences are explaned below

2013 2012
£000 £000
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before tax 528,888 (5,949
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 23 25% (2012 24 5%) 122,966 (1,457)
Effects of
Timing differences relating to financial instruments 614) (647)
Non-taxable income and credits recieved (315,895) (781)
Non-deductible expenditure and other items 192,045 892
Current tax charge/(credit) for the year (1,498) (1,993)

The corporation tax rate will decrease to 21% from 1 April 2014 and will further decrease to 20% from [ April 2015
as enacted in the Finance Act 2013

c) Analysis of deferred tax

2013 2012
£000 £000
Movements during the year in the net deferred taxation asset.
At I January 1,823 2,642
Amount charged n the profit and loss account (528) (660)
Amount charged m the profit and loss account - effect of tax rate change 238) (159)
At 31 December 1,057 1,823

Deferred tax assets have been recogmised in respect of temporary differences arisng on dervatuve financial
mstruments because 1t 1s more hkely than not that these assets will be recovered There was no unprowided deferred
tax at 31 December 2013 (2012 £mil)



Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2013

7. Fixed asset investments
Ordinary Preference
shares 1n shares tn
subsidiary subsidiary
undertakings undertakings Total
£000 £000 £000
At | January 2013 2,900,100 160,327 3,060,427
Exchange adjustments - 2,270 2,270
Impatrment (826,000) - (826,000)
At 31 December 2013 2,074,100 162,597 2,236,697

In 1997, the Company acquired 100% of the ordinary share capital of Gallaher Limited The historical cost of this
mvestment was £232.305,000 Following the acquisition, the mnvestment was valued at £2,900,000,000 by the
directors, based on external advice, the difference between the historical cost and the valuation being credited to a
revaluation reserve The Company’s investment in Gallaher Limited euro-denommated preference shares and its
tnvestments 1n other subsidiaries are carmed at a director’s valuation, which 1s comparable to historical cost

During 2008 and 2009, as part of corporate re-organisations, the Company transferred all of its mvestment n
Gallaher Limited to another direct subsidiary, Gallaher Overseas {Holdings} Limited (“GOHL"™), n exchange for
ordinary shares 1ssued by GOHL

The investment in Gallaher Limited preference shares comprises 195 million non-voting variable rate cumulative
preference shares of €1 each The Company receives dividends based on 3-month Eumbor plus 1 25% per annum,
payable quarterly in arrears On winding up, the preference sharcholders rank above ordinary sharcholders and are
entitled to €1 per share and any dividends accrued but unpaid in respect of their shares In the opmion of the
directors, the carrying value of the preference shares approximates their fair vatue

In October 2013, the Company received a cash dividend of £1,354,000,000 from a subsidiary, GOHL The dividend
amount represented a surplus cash holding within an underlying subsidiary, Gallaher Limited The Directors
performed an impairment review to assess whether there had been any impact on the carrying value of the Company’s
mvestment in GOHL As a result of this valuation process, which involved reviewing latest management forecasts and
using a discount rate of 7%, cashflows over 4 years and a decline rate of 6%, the Company booked an impairment
charge amounting to £826,000,000 agamst the carrying value of 1its investment in GOHL 1n the profit and loss
account for the year ended 31 December 2013 No other impairments have been 1dentified as part of the Directors’
annual review of the carrying value of the Company’s investments n subsidiaries

Gallaher Group Lamated 15 the beneficial owner of all of the equity share capital of its direct subsichartes The direct
subsidiaries at 31 December 2013, both of which are unlisted, are shown below

Country of
Name incorporation Prineipal activity
Gallaher Overseas (Holdings) Limited Great Britain Investment holding company
JTI (UK} Finance PLC Great Britain Finance company

12



Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2013

8. Debtors
2013 2012
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - group relief 1,498 1,993
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - other 278 1,164
1,776 3,157
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Deferred tax assets {note 6) 1,057 1,823
2,833 4,980

The carrying value of debtors approximates the fair value Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured and
repayable on demand There 1s no provision for impairment

9 Creditors

2013 2012
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - loans and interest payable 276,078 426,575

The carrymg value of creditors approximates the fair value Amounts due to Group undertakings are unsecured and
repayable on demand The amounts owed to group undertakings carry interest of 0 957% (2012 1 291%) per annum
charged on the outstanding loan balances

10.  Financial risk management

The Company’s exposure to funding and hiquidity, mnterest rates and foreign exchange 1s managed in line with JT
Group’s treasury policy framework These risks are partly managed at the Group level and partly at an individual
business unit level

The Company does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for
speculative purposes

Interest rate sk management
The Company has interest bearing financial assets and liabilities

The Company’s financial assets are held for short periods before being used for working capital funding and the
Company does not actively manage the interest rate rnisk on these assets The interest rate exposure on the borrowings
1s managed with an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivative and
non-derivative nstruments at the reporting date A 1% movement has been used and represents management’s
assessment of a reasonable possible change

If interest rate had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables wete held constant, the impact on the profit/loss for
the year ended 31 December 2013 would be a decrease/increase of £1,122,000 (2012 increase/decrease of
£2,649,000) This 1s mamly attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates on its vanable rate cash deposits
and borrowings




Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2013

10. Financia! risk management {continued)
Ligquidity sk management

The Company manages the hquidity nsk of financial habilities by mamtainmg sufficient higuid financial assets and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and habilities At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the
creditors classed as due with one year, whalst technically repayable on demand are not expected to be repaid within
one year The amounts that are expected to be repaid over the next year will be matched against amounts that are
expected to be received from other group compames either as dividends or repayment of current receivables balances

The Company has no derivative financial instruments  Non-derivative financial habilities at 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2012 comprise loans from Group undertakings that bear interest based on LIBOR plus a margin

Foreign currency risk management

The Company has undertaken certan transactions denominated in Euros Hence, exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations anse Exchange rate gamns or losses are recogmised m the profit and loss account in the period they are
mcurred

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the Company’s only foreign currency exposure relates to its Euro
denominated investment n preference shares issued by Gallaher Limited, and the dividend wncome receivable
thereon

The table below details the Company’s sensitivity 1o a 10% ncrease and decrease in the sterling rate against the Euro
for both years, with all other variables remaming constant A 10% movement in exchange rates based on the level of
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and habilities represent management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change m foreign exchange rates The sensiivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items

Increase/(decrease)
n profit

2013 2012

£000 £000
10% strengthening of sterling
Euro (14,782) {14,575)
10% weakening of sterling
Euro 18,066 17,814

Credit risk management

Cred:t risk relates to the nisk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting n a financial loss fo
the Company The Company’s only financial assets are receivables owed by related parties

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded 1n the financial statements, represents the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk



Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2013

11 Called up share capital

£000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
At | January 2013 (657,142,748 ordinary shares of 10p each) 65,714
Issue of ordinary shares (note 12) 1,756,529
Capital reduction (note 12) (1,756,529)
At 31 December 2013 (657,142,748 ordinary shares of 10p each) 65,714
The Company has unhmited authorised share capital
12. Reserves
Capital Capatal Share Profit
contribution redemption premwum  Revaluation and loss
reserve reserve account reserve account
£000 £0600 £000 £000 £000
At 1 Fanuary 2013 7,504 7,872 138,381 1,756,529 662,832
Profit for the year - - - - 529,620
Capital reduction (see below) - - {(138,381) (1,756,529) 1,894,910
Dividends paid on ordinary equity shares - - - - (1,205,000}
At 31 December 2013 7,504 7.872 - - 1,882,362

Capital contribution reserve

Following the acquisition of the Company by Japan Tobacco Inc m Apni 2007, 1,444,926 share options held by
eligible employees under the Savings related share option schemes (“SRS0S”) were settled directly by JT at the
acquisition share price of £11 40 per share. The cash amount recerved by the Company from the employees in respect
of these share 1ssues, bemng the appropriate share option price at the date of grant, has been credited to a caputal
contribution reserve

Capital redemption reserve

Upon the buy back of 1ts own shares by the Company, the nomnal value of the shares cancelled 1s transferred to a
capital redemption reserve in accordance with Section 170(1) of the Companies Act 1985

Capital reduction

In October 2013, the Company undertook a capital restructuring The Company firstly capitalised its revaluation
reserve through the 1ssue of 17,565,290,000 new ordinary shares of 10p each, reducing the revaluation reserve to nil
and increasing called up share capital by £1,756,529,000

The Company then undertock a capital reduction whereby the share capital was reduced by £1,756,290,000
(17,565,290,000 ordinary share of 10p each) and the share premium was reduced by £138,381,010 to mil The profit
and loss account reserve was credited with an equivalent amount (£1,894,910,010)

15



Gallaher Group Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2013

13. Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

2013 2012

£000 £000
Profit/(loss) for year 529,620 4,775
Drvidends paid on ordinary equity shares (1,205,000) -
Net decrease in shareholders” funds (675,380) (4,775)
Shareholders’ funds at | January 2,638,832  2.643,607
Shareholders’ funds at 31 December 1,963,452 2,638,832

14.  Related party transactions

In accordance with the exemptions offered by Financial Reporting Standard No 8 there is no disclosure i the
financial statements of transactions with entities that are part of Japan Tobacco Inc and its subsidiaries

15. Contingencies

The Company has contingent lrabilities 1n respect of bank and other guarantees and other matters ansing n the
ordinary course of business [t 1s not anticipated that any matenal habilities will anse from the contingent hiabilities

At 31 December 2013, the Company had no guarantees m respect of the financial obligations of subsidiaries
(2012 £ml) [n addition, the Company had provided a guarantee in respect of the financial obhigations of Gallaher
Lunited related to the performance of interest rate swaps with a notional principal of £250,000,000 which were
transferred durimg 2009, including all future cash flows under the swap contracts The swaps matured in February
2013

At 31 December 2013, the Company had no contingent habilities tn respect of guarantees given in respect of third
parties (2012 £ml).

16 Ultimate holding company and consolhidation

The Company 15 a wholly-owned subsidiary of JTI (UK) Management Ltd, a company incorporated in Great Britain
and registered 1n England and Wales

The smallest group 1n which the results of the Company are consolidated 1s JT International Group Holding B V
(formerly JT Europe Holding B V), registered in Netherlands Copies of the consohdated financial statements of
JIT International Group Holding BV may be obtamed from Vreelandseweg 46, Hilversum, Noord-Holland,
Nethertands 1216

Japan Tobacco Inc, which is registered 1n Japan, 1s regarded as the ulimate holding company and the largest group
in which the results of the Company are consolidated Copies of the consolidated financial statements of Japan
Tobacco Inc may be obtained from 2-2-1 Toranomon, Mmato-ku, Tokyo, 105-8422, Japan
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JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

MANAGING BOARD REPORT

General

JT International Group Holding BV (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as the “Group” or “JTI”) are a leading multinational tobacco business with a strong portfolio of
brands deployed across numerous markets around the world JT Intemational Group Holding
BV 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary of Japan Tobacco inc (“JT”) JTI has a hicense agreement
with JT, granting ITI the exclusive rights to use certain JT trademarks outside the United States,
Japan and China

Pursuant to an amendment of Dutch law effective January 1, 2013, the Company shall pursue a
policy of having at least 30% of the seats on the Managing Board held by men and at least 30%
of the seats held by women Given this recent enactment, the Company was unable to meet the
above-mentioned gender criterion in 2013. The JTI Group will continue to strive for an adequate
and balanced composition of its Managing Board i future appomtments, by taking into account
all relevant selection criteria, including but not limited to gender balance and executive
experience

1 Developments in the period ended December 31, 2013
The JTI Group delivered a strong performance 1n 2013 despite many challenges.

Full year earnings achieved double-digit growth and share of market and share of value increased
in the majonty of our key markets Our volume performance versus last year decreased 4 6% due
to continued economic downturn in Southern Europe, the volatihty in the Middle East and
industry contraction across many markets Our Global Flagship Brands (GFB) decreased 0 8%
compared to prior year, as Winston grew volume, exceeding its previous annual record In
addition, we continued to grow our fine cut volume, increasing 18 4%

Increased share of market and share of value combined with robust pricing generated Core
Revenue' and EBITDA? growth of 6.1% and 11 3%, respectively, at constant rates of exchange.

In Q1 2013 the JTI Group acquired Nakhla, one of the world’s leading manufacturers of water-
pipe tobacco, based in Egypt Besides its important presence in Egypt, Nakhla also exports to 85
countries where the product (Shisha) has a deep-rooted heritage.

In Q4 2013, the JTI Group entered into an agreement to acquirc a 20% stake in Megapols,
Russia’s leading tobacco distributor accounting for approximately 70% of the Russian cigarette
distribution market In 2012 1t delivered more than 260 billion sticks of cigarettes to more than
150,000 points of sale.

Core revenue does not include revenue from distribution, contract manufacturing and other peripheral businesses

2 Operating result adding bank, depreciation, tmpatrment, amortization, restructuning gams and losses and all JT cross charges (service cross

charge and royalttes)
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JT INTERNATIONAT GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

2 Financial position as at year-end 2013

The consolidated balance sheet as at year-end 2013 includes intangible fixed assets for an amount
of USD 16,428 million (2012: USD 16,579 million). Total assets amount to USD 31,149 million
(2012 USD 29,829 million) Total group equity of the Company amounts te USD 21,680 million
(2012: USD 20,037 mallion). Current liabilities at year-end amount to USD 5,937 mullion (2012
USD 5,460 million).

3 Result analysis

Net sales were USD 13,364 million (2012 USD 13,096 million), an increase of USD 268 million
(2012 increase USD 551 mullion) or 2 0% (2012 4 4%) compared to the previous financial year
We refer to paragraph 1 for further details on the result analysis.

4 Risk exposure

Risks, uncertainties or other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
expressed i any forward-looking statement include, without limitation

1 health concerns relating to the use of tobacco products,

2 legal or regulatory developments and changes, including, without limitation, tax increases and
restrictions on the sale, marketing and usage of tobacco products, and governmental
investigations and privately imposed smoking restrictions,

hitigation and claims;

our ability to further diversify our business beyond the tobacco mdustry,

our ability to successfully expand internationally,

competit:on and changing consumer preferences;

the impact of any acquisitions or similar transactions,

global economic conditions, and

fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and the costs of raw materials

JTI conducts business on a multi-nathional basis 1n a wide variety of foreign currencies and, as
such, uses dervative financial instruments to reduce cash flow volatility associated with foreign
cxchange rate changes In 2013 and 2012, JTT used foreign currency forwards and swaps to
economically hedge its exposure to fluctuations 1in Euro, GBP, Swiss Francs, Russian Ruble,
Turkish Lira, Taiwan Dollar, Brazilhian Real and certain other currencies All foreign currency
derivative contracts have maturities of twelve months or less

For identification purpose onl
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JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

JTI does not designate derivative instruments in accounting hedge relationships. Accordingly, all
changes in the fair values of derivatives are recorded in the statement of income

As a result of the use of derivative instruments, JTI is exposed to the risk that counterparties to
derivative contracts will fail to meet their contractual obligations. To mitigate the counterparty
credit risk, the Company has a policy of only entering into contracts with carefully selected major
financial institutions based upon their credit ratings and other factors, and maintains strict dollar
and term Limits that correspond to each institution’s credit rating The Company’s established
policies and procedures for mitigating credit risk on principal transactions include reviewing and
establishing limits for credit exposure and continually assessing the creditworthiness of
counterpartics At December 31, 2013 there were no significant concentrations of credit risk with
any indivedual counterparty or groups of counterpartics related to the Company’s use of
derivative contracts JTI’s established policies and procedures for mitigating credit nisk on
principal transactions include reviewing and establishing limits for credit exposure and
continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties. ISDA agreements with
counterparties give JTI the option to net amounts due from JTI to a counterparty with amounts
due to JTI from a counterparty reducing the maximum loss from credit nisk in the event of
counterparty default At December 31, 2013 there were no significant concentrations of credit
risk with any tndividual counterparty or groups of counterparties related to JTE’s use of derivative
contracts.

5 Research and development

Costs sncurred on development projects would be recognized as intangible fixed assets when 1t is
probable that JTT will achieve economic benefits in the future, considering its commercial and
technological feasibihity, and costs can be measured reliably However, as these costs do not meet

the aforementioned criteria, research and development costs are expensed as incurred For 2013,
the rescarch and development costs amount to USD 71 mulhion (2012 USD 73 million)

6 Employee information

JT1 employed an average number of 28 480 employees during 2013 (2012 26,593)
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JT INTERNA 1HONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

7 Distribution of earnings

The distribution of the earnings of the Company 1s at the disposal of the general meeting of
shareholders The Managing Board proposes that the 2013 net result 1s added to the retained
earnings. The financial statements do not yet reflect this proposal

8 Future Outlock

Despite continued challenges from the economic and regulatory environment, the JTI Group is
committed to continue delivering strong profit growth at constant rates of exchange The
Company forecasts a further increase of Core Revenue and EBITDA, driven by GFB mix
improvement and strong pricing

2014 capex and Research and Development investments will remain broadly consistent with
2013 Management expects that future cash flows will be sufficient to repay existing external
debt upon matunty Headcount is planned at optimized levels sufficient to meet the requirements
of the business as 1t continues to grow

For identification purpose only.
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JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

9 Others

Further information about the performance of JT can be found in the annual report 2013/2014 of
Japan Tobacco Inc, Japan, the ultimate parent company of JT International Group Holding B V.

Amsterdam, May 13, 2014

Managing Board;

TA McCoy

EJL G Pirard
(KL
A Saeki

T e

M 4 Terabatake

By 2 _
/(*@ 1AL 3
J Fukuchi
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JT INTERNA TIONAL GROUP HOLDING B.V , AMSTERDAM

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2013
(before proposed appropriation of result)

Assets

{1n milhons of USD) December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
(restated)!

Fixed assets

Goodwill 13,085 13,306

Trademarks, disthibution agreements

and software 3,343 3,273

Intangible fixed assets (1) 16,428 16,579

Land, butldings and structures 884 869

Machinery and equipment 1,813 1,769

Fixed assets under construction 573 306 *

Tangible fixed assets (2) 3,270 2,944 *

Participations in non-consolidated companies 186 242

Deferred taxes 755 799

Fimancial fixed assets (3) 941 1,041 *

Total fixed assets 20,639 20,564

Current assets

Leaf tobacco and consumables 2,488 2,410

Fimished products 636 584

Others 335 311

Inventories (4) 3,459 3,305

Trade receivables 2,694 2,694

Other receivables 211 231 %

Prepaid expenses and excise taxes 1,926 1,780

Accrued income and others 328 205 *

Recervables and prepaid expenses (5) 5,159 4,910 *

Cash and cash equivalents (6) 1,892 1,050

Total current assets 10,510 9,265

Total agsets 31,149 29,829

* The comparat:ve figures have been adjusted to impreve the comparabshty

1) Prior year amounts have been restated to reflect cetrospective application of revised IAS 19
For identification purpose only.
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Group equity and

(in millions of USD)

Group equity (7)
Equity attributable to equity holder
Minority mterest

Total Group equity

Provisions (8)

Pensions and post-retirement benefits
Other benefit obligation

Taxes

Others

Long-term liabilities (9)
Bonds
Others

Current liabilities

JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

liabilities

Current portion of long-term habilities to

third parties (9)

Taxes and social security contributions
Trade accounts payable

Short-term borrowings to banks
Amounts due to affihates (10)
Accrued expenses

Others

Total equity and habilities

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 '
(restated)’ :
|
21,525 19,881
155 156
21,680 20,037
1,222 1,312
90 104
1,773 1,787
63 48
3,148 3,251
|
| 662
383 419
334 1,081
21 433
2,988 2,959
551 468
181 237
92 167 '
1,126 965
278 231
5,937 5,460 ‘
31,149 29,829

1} Pnor year amounts have been restated to reflect retrospective apphication of revised IAS 19
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JT INTERNATIONAI GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
Year ended December 31, 2013

(in millions of USD) 2013 2012
(restated)’

Gross sales 36,462 35,354
Less. excise taxes 23,098 22,258
Net sales (12) 13,364 13,096 *
Cost of sales 5,726 5,933
Gross margm 7,638 7,163
Selling and related expenses 3,457 3,338
General and administrative expenses 1,656 1,503
Total expenses 5,113 4,841
Operating result 2,525 2,322
Result of equity accounted investments 16 34
Net interest result/ expense (13) 37N 023
Net foreign exchange result (56) (142)
Net other financial income and expenses () Q)
Net financial result (98) (238)
Result on ordinary activities before taxation 2,443 2,118
Income taxes (14) (721 (715)
Result on ordinary activities after taxation 1,722 1,403
Minorty interest (38) (44)
Net result for the year 1,684 1,359
Foreign currency translation adjustment (85) (18)
Hedge of net investment losses, net of tax . -
Actuarial losses on post-employment benefit obligations 54 (284)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) 31 (302)
Comprehensive income / (loss) 1,653 1,057

* The comparative figures have been adjusted to improve the comparability

1) Prior year amounts have been restated to reflect retrospective application of revised J1AS 19

For identification purpose &
Related {0 auditor’s repo
dated L% etd 9.1/

-
reerfiaslarsannn







JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended December 31,2013

(1n millions of USD)

(According to the indirect method} 2013 2012

(restated)’

Cash flows from operating activities

Net result for the year 1,684 1,359
Adjustments for
Income taxes 721 715
Depreciation, amortization and impairments 1,740 1,589
Result of equity accounted investments (16) (34)
Unrealized foreign exchange (gan)/loss 36 101
Other non-cash items 21 (13)
Net interest result N 43
Minonity interest 38 44
2,533 2,445

Changes 1n assets and liabilities, net of
acquired companmes

Trade and other receivables (44) (354)

Inventortes 142) 12

Prepaid expenses and excise taxes {185) (353)

Other assets (55) (22)

Trade payables (72) (52)

Taxes and social security contributions 14 357

Other habilities 27 123

{511) (289)

Cash provided from operations 3,706 3,515
Dividends received from associates 24 22
Net interest paid 8 (26)
Income tax pad {703) (760)

Net cash provided by operating activities
(carry forward) 3,035 2,751

1) Pror year amounts have been restated 10 reflect retrospective application of revised LAS 19
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{in millions of USD)

Net cash provided by operating
activities (brought forward)

Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of assets

Proceeds from sale of subsidiary
Acqusitions, net of cash recerved
Investments 1n an associate

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows used in financing activities
Net decrease 1n short-term borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

2013

2012

(restated)'

(728)
18

(145)
(856)

7
(394)

Proceeds (repayment) of borrowing from affiliates 13

Other financing
Net cash used n financing activities

Net cash used in operating, investing and
financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents as at January 1
Effect of exchange rate differences on
cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31

(5N

3,035

(1,711)

(489)

1) Prior year amounts have been restated to reflect retrospective appheation of revised IAS 19

835

1,050

1,892

2,751

(546)

(580)
(12)

(1,089)
(172)
(998)
(39)
(1,201)

461

801

(212)
1,050
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JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

General

JT International Group Holding B.V, (“the Company”™), having its statutory seat in Amsterdam,
the Netherlands and offices in Hilversum, the Netherlands, 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary of Japan
Tobacco Inc (*JT"), Tokyo, Japan.

The comparative figures for 2012 have been reclassified to conform with current year’s
presentation

Operations

JT International Group Holding BV “(the Company™) and 1ts subsidianes (together referred to
as the “Group” or “JTI”) are a leading multinational tobacco business with a strong portfolio of
brands deployed across numerous markets around the world JTI has a license agreement with JT,
granting JTI the exclusive rights to use certain JT trademarks outside the Umited States, Japan and
China

The list of directly and indirectly held investments of the Company 1s filed with the Trade
Register m line with article 2 379 sub 5 of the Netherlands Civil Code.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
certain financial instruments that have been measured at fair value, 1n accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the Netherlands and comply with the financial reporting
requirements included i Section 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code

Application of revised Financial Reporting Standards

IAS 19 Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011)

In 2013, the Company has applied [AS 19 Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011) and the related
consequential amendments for the first time.

The company has applied [AS 19 (R) retrospectively and 1n accordance with the transitional
provisions as set out in [AS19 173 These changes have had an impact on the amounts recognized
in the consolidated statement of income and in the consolidated balance sheet in 2012 In
addition, IAS 19 (R) introduces certain changes in the presentation of the defined benefit pension
cost, inciuding more extensive disclosures

Specific transitional provisions are applicable to the first-ime application of IAS 19 (R) The
Company has applied the relevant transitional provisions and restated the comparative amounts
on a retrospective basis as follows

ror identification purposeonly,
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JT INTERNA TTONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

- Interest cost and expected return on plan assets are now replaced by a “net interest” cost,
computed by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit hability or asset,

- All prior service costs and credits are immediately recogmzed n the consolidated income
statement; and

- Deferred tax impact of the above changes 1s recogmzed in both the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive mcome.

Impact of IAS19(R) application

In millions of USD 31 Dec 2012 1 Jan 2012

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Net decrease in employee benefit hab:hties 6 6
Net decrease 1n deferred tax assets 1 1
Net increase 1n shareholders’ equity 5 5
Consohdated Statement of Income
Net decrease 1n operating income 3]
Net decrease in interest expense 10 -
Net increase in deferred tax expense (2) -
Increase in profit for the year 7
Increase in actuarial loss, net of deferred tax (N .

US dollar financial statements

The Company belongs to a multinational, which operates on a world-wide basis. In accordance
with Article 2 362, Section 7 of the Netherlands Civil Code, the US Dollar (“USD™) s the
presentation currency of the Company’s financial statements. All amounts in these financial
statements are recorded 1n millions of USD, unless stated otherwise

Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the going concern assumption.

For identification purposeonly.
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JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

General accounting principles for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

Consolidation Principles

The consolidated financial statements include the financial data of the company, its group
compantes and other companies over which the company has control Control exists when the
company has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities Group companies ate participating nterests in
which the company has a direct or indirect controlling interest In assessing whether controlling
interest exists, potential voting rights that are currently exercisable are taken into account

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financtal statements from
the date that control commences unti! the date that control ceases

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, intra-group debts, receivables and transactions
are eliminated. The group companies are consolidated in full with minority interest presented
within group equity separate from parent’s equity.

The financial information relating to the Company 1s presented in the consolidated financial
statements Accordingly, in accordance with article 2 402 of the Netherlands Civil Code, the
Company financial statements only contain an abridged profit and loss account

Foreign currencies

US Dollar 1s the functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency for these
consolidated financial statements.

Foreign currency transactions are translated in the functional currency of each subsidiary at the
rates of exchange prevailling on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary assets and hiabilities that are denomunated 1n foreign currencies are translated at the
rates prevailing at that date

Assets and liabihties of the Company’s foreign operations are translated at exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date Income and expense items are translated at the exchange
rates prevailing at the monthly average rate Exchange differences are recogmized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate)
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JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B.V., AMSTERDAM

Financial instruments

Receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at face value and, f applicable, less allowances for
doubtful accounts

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents include all short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash that have contractual maturities of three months or less at the date of
purchase

Derivative instruments and hedging activities

The Company uses denvative and non-derivative financial instruments to mutigate its foreign
currency and interest rate risk and not for speculative or trading purposes Derivatives are not
designated as accounting hedges. All derivatives are recognized as assets or habilities and
measured at fair value in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets Derivatives are classified as
other current assets and other current lrabilities to the extent they mature within 12 months of the
balance sheet date Changes i the fair value of denivatives are included in the consolidated
statement of income 1n the period in which they occur.

Non-derivative instruments, such as foreign-currency-denominated debt, may be designated as
hedges of the net investment in a foreign operation Gains (losses) on these instruments that have
been designated and have qualified as hedging instruments are included 1n the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a net of tax basis The gain (loss) relating to the
weffective portion, if any. s recaognized ummediately in the statement of income within net
financial income Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included in the statement of income
when the foreign operation 1s disposed of or sold.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company uses fair values to measure certain financial instruments  In addition, certamn non-
financial instruments are accounted for at fair value on a non-recurring basis.

The Dutch Accounting Standards (“DAS”) 290 paragraph 524 states that the fair value of
financial wnstruments is computed based on generally accepted measurement medels and
evaluation techniques DAS 290 does not prescribe a particular valuation model The Company
therefore used three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value

. Level 1 nputs are quoted prices in active markets for 1dentical assets or liabilities that JT1
has the ability to access at the measurement date

. Level 2 inputs are observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or habilities. Level 2 assets and habilities include derivative contracts whose
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JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

value 1s determined using a pricing model or discounted cash flow methodologies with
inputs that are observable in the market or can be derived principally from or corroborated
by observable market data

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity
Valuation of Level 3 assets and habilities requires sigmficant management judgment to
develop estimates of fair value Estimates are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that
could be realized in a current market transaction

Denivative financial instruments are recogmzed and measured at farr value in the Company’s
consolidated statement of financial position Carrying amounts of receivables, payables, accrued
expenses and short-term debt approximate their fair values.

The estimated fair value of long term debt 1s disclosed in note 11 Fair values are estimated based
on market prices (for public debt) or interest rates currently available to the Company for
borrowings with similar terms and remaining maturities (for bank and related party debt)

Long-term liabilities

Interest-bearing loans and habilities are valued at amortized cost

Inventories

Consistent with recognized industry practice, inventories of leaf tobacco that must be cured for
more than 12 months are classified as current assets Inventories are stated at the lower of
weighted-average cost or market value Inventory write-downs and write-offs are recorded as a
component of cost of sales

Leaf tobacco inventories include the following cost elements
. Leaf purchasing and overhead costs

. Storage costs during leaf cuning

. Inbound freight costs
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Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost, net of accurmulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses Costs incurred after the acquisition are recogmzed as assets 1f it
1s probable that additional economic benefits will flow to the Company, and the benefit can be
measured reliably Other repair and maintenance costs are recognized as expense when incurred

Properties in the course of construction for production or admimstrative purposes are carried at
cost less any recognized impairment loss Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitahized in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy
Depreciation of these assets, commences when the assets are ready for their mtended use

Depreciation charge is computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful
lives

Buildings 20-50 years
Leasehold improvements 10-20 years {or lease term, if shorter)
Machinery and equipment 3-15 years

Land is not depreciated
Financial fixed assets

Participating intercsts where significant influence 1s exercised over the business and financial
policy are valued according to the equity method on the basis of net asset value The difference
between the acquisition price and the net asset value 1s recognized as goodwill

Participating interests where no significant influence ts exercised are stated at the lower of cost or
realisable value

Business combinations and related goodwill

Most assets and liabilities of the acquired businesses are recorded at their estimated fair values at
the acquisition date Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of
net assets, including the amount assigned to 1dentifiable mtangible assets Where applicable, the
consideration includes any asset or lability resuluing from a contingent consideration
arrangement, measured at its acquisition-date fair value

Goodwill arising 1n a business combination 15 recognized as an asset at the date that control 1s
acquired

Based on the long-established lives of JTI's global flag brands and sigmificant support for such
brands, a 20-year amortization period has been selected for goodwill.

For identification purpase only.
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JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

For goodwill an assessment 1s made as of each balance sheet date as to whether there are
indications that the goodwill 1s subject to impairment. If there are such indications, the
recoverable value of the goodwill 1s estimated

If the carrying value of an asset or a cash flow generating unit 1s higher than the recoverable
value, an impairment loss 1s recorded for the difference between the carrying value and the
recoverable value

Intangible assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets on the Company’s balance sheet are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment, and consist mainly of trademarks acquired and software

Amortization 1s computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives

Trademarks 20 years
Computer software 5 years
Other intangibles 3-6 years

Impairment of long-lived assets, other than goodwill

Long-lived tangible and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes 1n circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit
{CGU) may not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s recognized to the extent that the carrying
amount exceeds the higher of the asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs to sell or its value in use

At each reporting period, an assessment is made as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased due to a
change 1n the assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount. If such indication exists,
the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount When the recoverable amount
exceeds the asset’s or CGU’s carrying amount, the impairment loss 1s reversed up to a ceiling of
the lower of the estimated recoverable amount or the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset 1n prior
years

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership are transferred to the Company All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are capitahized as part of the tangible fixed assets at the present
value of the mmimum lease payments and depreciated over their useful economic lives or the
lease term, whichever is shorter The corresponding lease commitments are shown as obligations
to the lessor and the interest element of lease obligations 15 charged to the statement of income
over the lease term  Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the statement of income
over the lease term on a straight-line basis

For identification purpnse coly
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JT INTFRNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

Retirement Benefits

In ahgnment with the Dutch Accounting Standards (“DAS™) 271, “Employee Bencfits”,
paragraph 101, JTI elects to apply IAS 19

The Company offers both defined benefit and defined contribution plans. A defined contribution
plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions tnto a
separate fund and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employec benefits relating to employee service 1n
the current and prior periods A defined benefit plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan other than
a defined contribution plan

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans 1s determined separately for each
plan using the projected unit credit method with actuanal valuations being carried out at each
balance sheet date The net defined bencfit asset or liability comprises the present value of the
defined benefit obligation, less the fair value of plan assets The present value of the defined
benefit obligation 1s computed using a discount rate based on hgh quality corporate bonds that
are denominated n the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related pension obligation. In countries where there 1s no
deep market in corporate bonds, the discount rate reflected 1n thus calculation 1s based on the
market rates of government bonds

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit habulity resulting from actuanal gains and losses,
return on plan assets and any change in the effect of an asset ceiling relating to each plan are
recogmized 1n the statement of comprehensive income as incurred Past service costs are
recogmzed in the tncome statement on a straight line basis over the average period until the
benefits become vested To the extent that the benefits are vested immediately following the
introductton of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan, the Company recognizes past service cost
immediately in the income statement

The value of any defined benefit asset recognized 1s restricted to the sum of any past service costs
not yet recogmzed and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plan or reductions n the future contributions to the plan

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions

Provisions

Provisions are recogmzed when the Company has a present abligation as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the settlement of obligation 1s required, and a rehable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation

The amounts recognized as provisions are the current best estimatc of the expenditure required to

settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period by taking into consideration the
risks and uncertainties relating to the obligations When the effect of the ime value of money 1s
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material, the amount of a proviston 1s measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation

Restructuring provisions are recognized when the Company has a detailed formal plan for
restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that the restructuring will be
carried out Provisions include only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which
are necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the
Company

Contingencies

The Company discloses contingent liabilities 1n the notes to consolidated financial statements if 1t
has possible obligations at the year end, whose existence cannot be confirmed at that date, or if
the obligations do not meet the recognition critena of a provision

Revenue recognition

The Company recogmzes revenue from the sale of goods when the significant risks and rewards
of the goods are transferred to the buyer (usually this 1s upon delivery), the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably and 1t is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction
will flow to the entity

Revenue 1s recogmized net of VAT, excise taxes, other sales related taxes, sales and marketing
incentives, including prominent display fees, payments linked to specific performance criternia
(such as targeted sales volumes, ranging and stock availability) and payments to support shelf
price reduction n relation to promotional activity. Obligauons related 1o sales incentives that
involve retrospective payments to customers arc estimated principally by reference to the
Company’s historical experience with similar programs and the probability that the sales
incentive will take place

Shipping and handling fees billed to customers are included 1n gross revenues, while shipping
and handling costs incurred directly are included 1n cost of sales

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisitton, construction or production of an asset that
necessartly takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use.
All other borrowing costs are recognized in the profit and loss 1n the period in which they are
incurred Capitalized borrowing costs were insignificant in 2013 and 2012
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Research and development
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.
Income taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises curtent and deferred tax Tax 1s recognized in the
statement of income, except to the extent that 1t relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income In this case, the tax 15 also recognized in other comprehensive income

The current income tax charge 1s computed on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date i the countries where the Company operates and generates
taxable ncome. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations tn which applicable tax regulation 1s subject to interpretation It establishes provisions,
where appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authonties. The
Company classifies any penalties as a component of income tax and interest as finance expense

Deferred income tax 1s recogmzed, using the hability method, on temporary differences ansing
between the tax bases of assets and habilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements Deferred income tax 1s determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax hability 1s settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that 1t is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized

Deferred income tax 1s provided on temporary differences arising on mvestments in subsidiaries
and associates, except for deferred income tax habihty where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the parent and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse 1n the foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arc offset when there 1s a legally enforceable night to
offset current tax assets against current tax {1abilities and when the deferred income tax assets and
liabihities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there 1s an intention to settle the balances on a net basis

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted 1n the Netherlands requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosures,
including the disclosure of contingent assets and lLabilities Actual results coutd differ from these
estumates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate 1s revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods
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The areas that require the most significant and sensitive judgments and estimates include

e  Impairment of Non-financial Assets The impairment test for goodwill 1s based on value in
use calculations that use a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the
annual plan for the following three years, and do not include restructuring activities that the
Company 15 not yet commuitted to or significant future mvestments that will enhance the
asset base of the cash generating unit being tested

*  Retirement Benefits: The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment
medical benefits as well as the present value of the pension obligation is determined based
on actuarial valuations The actuarial valuations involve making assumptions about
demographics (including mortality rates), discount and inflation rates, and future salary
increases All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. In determining the
appropriate discount rate for the Company’s most significant plans, management uses high-
quality corporate bond yield curves reflecting the expected timing and amount of the future
benefit payments for the respective countries A consistent assumption 1s used across the
Eurozone For the other plans, the discount rate 1s based on high-quality corporate or
government bond yields with a duration consistent with underlying pension obhgations
The mortality rates are based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific country
and include an allowance for future improvements in life expectancy, in all countries where
this 1s available

. Deferred tax assets These assets are recognized for all available tax losses and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses and deductible temporary differences can be utihized Signmificant
judgment 1s required to determune the amount of deferred tax assets that can be rccognized,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies

¢  Provisions and contingencies The determination of legal and tax contingencies, and the
estimation of provistons for such habilities are subject to uncertain future events, and may
extend over several years The timing and/or amount may differ from current assumptions

Statement of cash flows

The consolidated statement of cash flows has been prepared according to the indirect method

The funds 1n the cash flow statement consist of cash and cash equivalents Cash equivalents can
be considered as highly liqu:d investments

Cash considerations paid for investments in subsidiaries and participations in group companies
acquired are recorded as a cash flow used in investing activities net of any cash and cash
equivalents acquired
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Transactions, not resulting in cash flows, such as financial leasing, are not recorded in the
statement of cash flows. Payments of the financial lease installments are recorded as a cash flow
used 1n financing activities for the redemption component and as a cash flow used in operational
activities for the interest component

Differences in movements between balance sheet items from one period to another and the
amount taken up in the cash flow statements 1s caused partly by exchange differences.
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Notes to the specific items of the consolidated balance sheet

Intangible fixed assets (1)

Movements are as follows:

(:n millions of USD)

Acquisition price at historical cost
Accumulated amortization as of
December 31, 2012

Book value as of December 31, 2012

Additions through business
combinatians
Addtions acquired separately

Amortization for the year
Imparrment loss

Transfers

Currency translation adjustments

Book value as of December 31, 2013
Acquisition price at historical cost

Accumulated amortization as of
December 31, 2013

Book value as of December 31, 2013

Goodwill Trademarks, Total
distribution
agreements
and software
19,245 5,305 24,550
(5,939 (2,032) (7.971)
13,306 3,273 16,579
749 308 1,057
- 50 50
(970) (284) (1,254)
- 0] N
- 1 |
- 2 2
13,085 3,343 16,428
19,994 5,647 25,641
(6,909} (2,304) (9,213)
13,085 3,343 16,428

On December 12, 2013 the Company acquired 20% of the outstanding share capital of Megapohs
Distribuiion BV and 1ts subsidianes {collectively referred 1o as “Megapohis™) for an amount of

USD 856 million.

On 1 March 2013, the Company acquired Al Nakhla Tobacco Company S.A E and Al Nakhla
Tobacco Company - Free Zone S.A.E (collectively referred to as “Nakhla®) for an amount of

USD 266 mullion.
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Tangible fixed assets (2)

Movements are as follows.

Land,
builldings Machinery Asscts
and and under Total

(n mullwons of USD) structures equipment constructon
Acquisttion price at histonical cost 1,166 3,755 306 5,227
Accumulated depreciation as of
December 31, 2012 (297) (1,986} - (2,283)
Book value as of December 31, 2012 869 1,769 306 2944
Additions through business
combmations 5 1 - 16
Additions acquired separately 39 252 450 741

913 2,032 756 3,701
Book value of the disposals - (11) )] (12)
Depreciation for the year (46) (323) ] am
Imparments - (4) - @)
Transfers 29 144 (174) 1))
Currency translation adjusiments (12) (25) (6) (43)
Book vahie as of December 31, 2013 384 1,813 573 3,270
Acquisition price at histoncal cost 1,219 4,003 575 5,797
Accumulated depreciation as of
December 31, 2013 (335) (2,1950) (2} (2,527)
Book value as of December 31, 2013 884 1,813 573 3,270

In 2013, down payments for machinery have been reclassified from other receivables to property,
plant and equipment, assets under construction Prior year amounts have been adjusted to reflect
this change

Net transfers out in 2013 and 2012 relate to assets transferred to assets held for sale and
intangible assets

The present value of future minimum lease paymenis for assets under finance leases was USD 2
million at December 31, 2013 (2012 USD 2 mullion) Of that amount, USD 0 3 mullion 1s due
within one year

No assets were pledged as collateral in 2013 or 2012
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Financial fixed assets (3)

Movements are as follows:

{m mulons of USD)

Book value as of December 31, 2002
Purchases and lpan granted

Sales and redemptions

Additvons

Share n result

Dwidends recerved

Charged to Other Comprehensive meome / (loss)
Credited to Statement of Income, net
Transfers and reclassifications

Imp arrments

Currency translation adpjustments

Book value as of December 31, 2013

JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B.V , AMSTERDAM

Particrpations
o non-con- Deferred
sobdated mcome Total
companies taxcs
242 799 1,041
47 - 47
16 - 16
(24) . @4)
. @ @n
- 1) @1)
- 2 2
o7 - ©7)
2 36 38
186 755 941
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Deferred income taxes

The components for the deferred income taxes are as follows

(in millions of USD) 2013 2012
Temporary differences 801 863
Tax credits and carry forward losses 255 347
1,056 1,210
Offset deferred tax assets and liabilities (120) (289)
Valuation allowances (181) (122)
Balance as of December 31 755 799

The deferred tax assets are reflected in the balance sheet after offsetting assets and habilities
where there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset and where the deferred income taxes relate to
the same fiscal authornity

The realization of deferred tax assets 15 assessed on a junsdiction-by-jurisdiction basis The
assessment 1s based upon the weight of all available evidence, including factors such as the recent
earnings history and expected future taxable income A valuation allowance 15 recorded to reduce
deferred tax assets to a level which, more likely than not, will be realized

The deferred income taxes include an amount of USD 130 mulion (2012 USD 134 milhon)
which 1s of a short-term nature

Inventories (4)

The carrying amounts of inventories were as follows

(in millions of USD) 2013 2012

Leaf tobacco and consumables 2,488 2,410
Fimished products 636 584
Others 335 311
Balance as of December 31 3,459 3,305
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Receivables, prepaid expenses and accrued income (5)

Receivables and prepaid expenses consist of.

(in millions of USD) 2013 2012+
Net trade receivables 2,694 2,694
Other receivables 211 231
Prepaid expenses and taxes 1,926 1,780
Accrued income and others 328 205
Balance as of December 31 5,159 4,210
* The comparative figures have been adjusted 1o tmprove the comparability

In 2013, down payments for machinery have been reclassified from other receivables to property,
plant and equipment, assets under construction Prior year amounts have been adjusted to reflect
this change

The trade receivables are stated net of allowances of USD 20 million (2012 USD 17 million)

The receivables, prepard expenses and accrued income nclude an amount of USD 312 mullion
{2012 USD 202 mmllhion) of a long-term nature

Cash and cash equivalents (6)

Included in the cash balance above as of December 31, 2013 1s USD 400 milhon (2012- USD 172
mitlhon) held by the Iranian subsidiary JTI Pars PJS Co. Due to international sanctions imposed
on Iran, the subsidiary’s ability to remit funds outside of Iran 1s restricted Cash equivalents
include USD 556 milhon (2012 USD 225 mullion) central short-term deposits and USD 300
million (2012 mil) of short-term money market funds
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Equity attributable to equity holder (7)

For the breakdown of equity attributable to equity holders, reference 1s made to the Company

balance sheet and the notes to Company financial statements
The movement in minority interest 1s as follows,

(in millrons of USD)

Balances as of January 1

Result for the year

Currency translation adjustment

Adjustments anising from change in non-controlling interest

Dividend paid to minority interest

Balances as of December 31

Provisions (8)
Provisions comprise

(n milhions of USD)

Pensions and post-retirement benefits
Other benefit obligations

Taxes

Others

Balances as of December 31

1} Prior year amounts have been restated to reflect retrospective apphication of revised [AS 19
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Provisions (continued)

Retirement benefit schemes

The Company sponsors funded and unfunded defined benefit plans and defined contribution
plans as employee retirement benefit plans. The benefits on defined benefit plans are based on
conditions, such as points that employees acquired 1n compensation for each year of service, the
payment rate, years of service, average salary in their final year of service before retirement and
others

Special termination benefits may be provided to employees on their leave before the usual
retirement date under certain ¢ircumstances.

Risks

The Company’s major defined benefit plans are subject to funding requirements that fluctuate
based on nterest rates, performance of plan assets and changes i local regulations.

The principal risks to which the plans are exposed are asset volatility, interest rate risk, inflation

risk and hife expectancy.

e Asset volatility - plan liabilities are estimated using a discount rate set with reference to
corporate bond yields, 1f the plan assets underperform this yield, a deficit will be created.

e Interest rate risk - a decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities although this wili be
offset by an increase n the value of plan assets

¢ Inflation risk - the majonty of the plan benefits are linked to inflation, higher inflation wll
lead to tugher liabilities

e [Life expectancy - the majonity of the plan obligations provide benefits for the hfe of the
member, so igher life expectancy will result in an increase in the plan habilites
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Provisions (continued)

Matters related to actuarial assumptions

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine the results are included in the following
table The assumptions are apphicable to the net liability at the balance sheet date and the costs for
the annual period following that balance sheet date

31 Decamber 2013 31 Dacombar 2012
Post- Post-
Pension ratirement Penslon retirement
Benefits benefits Beneofits benefits
Dscount rate 389% 412% 3I71% 383%
Rate of compensation increase 3 56% 329% 330% 327%
Inflation rate 2 68% 186% 237% 206%
Health care cost trend rate for next year n/a 563% nfa 578%
Uttimate healthcare ¢ost trend rates n‘a 502% nia 525%
Years o ulimate rate n'a Jyears n‘a 3 years
Life expectancy, al age 65 for male currently aged 65 212 208 209 203
Life expectancy, at age 65 for female currently aged 65 238 233 235 229
Life expectancy, at age 65 for maje currently aged 50 225 218 221 211
Life expectancy, at age 65 for female currently aged 50 251 242 248 237

Income statement items related to retirement benefits

Amounts recognized n the consolidated income statement 1n respect of the Company’s defined
benefit schemes are as follows

Post. Post-

Pension retrement Fension retirerent
Benefits benefits Total Bensfits benefis Total
2012 2012 2012
In miltons of USD 2013 2013 2013 (resiated)’ {restated)’ {rastated)’
Current service cost 74 5 79 59 5 84
Past service cost 27 - 27 (9 3 {8)
Curtalments, settierments and specal R ) . 7 2 9

termination benefits

Net interest Cost 27 12 19 27 12 29
increase In profit for the year 128 17 145 84 22 508

1 Prior year has been restated to reflect retrospective application of revised LAS 19

Of the expense for the year, $53 million (2012 $23 million) was included in the income
statement as cost of sales, $54 mullhion (2012- $34 million) as administrative expenses, $39
million (2012- $39 mullion) as finance expense and $(1) mullion (2012 $10 muillion) as
restructuring and impairment (income) / expense
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Provisions (continued)

JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

Experience adjustments based on results of defined benefit obligations and plan

assets

The following table contains a summary of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of the plan assets and the experience adjustments

(in mitlions of USD)

Present value of defined benefit cbhgations
Fair value of scheme assets

Deficit in the scheme
Expenence (gains) losses on scheme hiabilities

Experience gains on scheme assets

Post-
Pension retirement
benefits benefits Total Total
2013 2013 2013 2012!
(4,130) (316) (4,446) (4,199)
3,354 27 3,381 3,058
(776) {289) (1,065) (1,141)
27 (2) {29) 65
161 2 163 (115)

1) Prior year amounts have been restated to reflect retrospective application of revised IAS 19

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligations and plan assets

The amounts recognized in the balance sheets and the funded status at December 31, 2013 and

2012 are as follows

(in mithons of USD)

Present value of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Surplus / (deficit) of funded plans
Present value of unfunded obligations

Net hability 1n the balance sheets

Presented as
Prepaid expenses and excise tax

Provision pensions and post-retirement benefits

Post-

Penston retirement
benefits benefits Total Total
2013 2013 2013 2012
(3,3249) (79) (3,403) G477
3,354 27 3,381 3,058
30 (52) 22) (1)
(806) (237) (1,043) (1,022)
(776) {(289) (1,065) (1,141)
157 - 157 171
(933) (289) (1,222 (1,312)
(776) (289) (1,065} (1,141)

1} Prior year amounts have been restated to reflect retrospective application of revised LAS 19
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Provisions (continued)

Schedule of defined benefit obligations

{in millions of USD)

Change i defined benefit oblhigation

Present value at January 1, 2013

Adjustments 1n respect of prior years

Present value at January 1, 2013 {restated)

Current service cost

Interest cost

Curtaillments, settlements and special termination
benefits

Past service cost

Benefit payments

Contributions by plan members

Actuanal gains and losses

Foreign exchange and other

Present value at December 31, 2013

JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B.V , AMSTERDAM

1) Prior year amounts have been restated to reflect retrospective application of revised IAS 19

Schedule of plan assets

(in vilhions of USD)

Change in plan assets

Fair vatue at January 1, 2013

Interest on plan assets

Company contributions

Benefit payments

Contribution by plan members

Transfer in

Return on plan assets (excluding interest)
Foreign exchange and other

Fair value at December 31, 2013

Actual return on scheme assets

Post-
Pension retircment
benefits benefits Total Total
2013 2013 2013 2012’
3,871 328 4,199 3,524
- (3)
4,199 3519
74 5 79 64
140 11 t51 161
- - - 9
27 - 27 (6)
(172) (10) (182) {199)
10 - 10 11
101 (18) 83 504
74 - 79 136
4,130 316 4,446 4,199
Post-
Pension retirement
bencfits benefits Total Total
2013 2013 2013 2012
3,633 25 3,058 2,700
I3 1 14 122
121 1 122 115
(135 (2) (137 (136)
10 - 10 11
2 - 2 23
161 2 163 i15
49 - 49 108
3,354 27 3.381 3,058
274 3 277 237

The Company expects to contribute USD 90 mullion to its funded defined benefit pension plans
and USD 1 million to 1its funded post-retirement medical plans in 2014
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Provisions (continued)

The allocation of the funded pension plans’ fair values of assets by asset category was as follows
at December 31, 2013

Asset category 2013 2012

Equity securities 39% 41%
Debt secunities 48% 46%
Real estate 2% 2%
Cash and other assets 1% 11%

100% 100%

The Company’s investment strategy for pension plan assets comprises a blend of assets that are a
reasonable match for the pension habilities and assets that are targeting long-term growth The
assets targeting long-term growth are well diversified across tndividual securities, industry
sectors and countries Plan assets are rebalanced periodically i line with the target asset
allocations The Company aims to maintain adequate liquidity to enable immediate and medium-
term benefit payments At December 31, 2013 and 2012, excluding any self-investment through
pooled funds, none of the Company’s pension plan assets had mvestments in JT shares, or in
property occupied by or other assets used by JT International Holding BV or JT

Other benefit obligation

The proviston for other employee benefits relates to former and nactive employees, not being
retired, such as salary continuation, supplemental unemptoyment benefits, severance benefits and
disability-related benefits including continuation of benefits such as health benefits and hfe
insurance coverage.

(in mlhons of USD) 2013
Balance as of January 1, 2013 104
Additions 1
Withdrawals (1%
Balance as of December 31, 2013 90

e

An amount of USD 15 mullion 18 considered to be of a short-term nature
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Taxes

Movements in tax provisions are as follows

(tn millions of USD)

Book value as of January 1, 2013

Credited / (charged) to Income Statement

Credited / (charged) to Other Comprehensive Income / (expense)
Scttlements

Transfers and nettings

Currency translatton adjustments

Others

Book value as of December 31, 2013

Deferred Uncertam
ncome tax , Totai
__faxes  __posibons . 2013

1,056 731 1,787
(98) 4 (94)
3 - 3
- @ 2
4 - 4
40 ) 34
48 (7) a1
1,053 720 1,773

The provisions for deferred income taxes and uncertain tax posttions can be considered to be of
as short-term nature for the amounts of USD 60 million and USD 29 million, respectively.

Other provisions

The other provisions mainly relate to restructuring plans, lhitigation cases and jubilee plans for

personnel Movements are as follows
(in millions of USD)

Balance as of January 1,
Additions

Utilization

Release of unused amounts
Transfers and reclassifications

Balance as of December 31

2013 2012
48 63
24 45
(4) )
4 (14)
(1) (37)
63 48

An amount of USD 29 mullion 1s considered to be of a short-term nature
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Long-term liabilities (9)

The long-term liabilities are as follows

(tn milions ofUSD) Long-term Current Total
hability portion " 2013
Bonds ] 687 688
Other bank loans - - -
RGI valuation payment - 34 34
Accrucd and othcr habilities 383 - 383
Total book value as of December 31, 2013 384 721 1,105

The long-term habilities mature within a period of five years The current portion of the long
term hiabihities 1s classified as current liabilities. Substantial all of the Company’s Borrowings are
guaranteed by JT

Bonds
At December 31, 2013, the Company had outstanding 500 mullion 4 5% Eurobonds with a
carrying amount of EUR 612 million (due 2014)

Syndrcated credit facilities to banks

At December 31, 2013 the Company had access to unused credit facilities of approximately USD
4 2 billion (2012 USD 3 7 billion), including USD 1.4 billion available under a commutted
syndicated facility (2012 USD 1 3 billion)

RGI Valuation Payment

As part of 2007 Gallaher acquisition, JT1 acquired a 50% interest in RJ Reynolds-Gallaher
International Sarl (“RGI™), a joint venture with RJ Reynolds Tobacco CV  The joint venture
was terminated on December 31, 2007 and JTI agreed to pay a valuation payment in February
2008 The remaining hability as of December 31, 2013 amounts to USD 34 muillion
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Current liabilities

Amounts due to affiliates (10)

{in millions of USD) 2013 2012

Short-term borrowings to JT affihates 92 26
Accounts payables - 141
Balance as of December 31 92 167

Commitments and contingencies
Lease commitments

The Company leases various buildings, computer equipment and vehicles under non-cancellable
operating leases The aggregate lease expense was USD 106 mullion n 2013 (2012 USD 98
million)

At the balance sheet date, the Company had outstanding commtments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

{in millions of USD) 2013 2012

Within one year 75 68
Between two and five years 120 136
After five years 68 54
Balance as of December 31 263 258

Financial commitments

The Company is a party to the 2007 Cooperation Agreement with the European Commuission
(“EC”) to combat the contraband and counterfeit of cigarettes in the European Union Payments
totahing USD 400 mutlion will be made over 15 years and used by the EC and participating
Member States to support anti-contraband and anti-counterfeit imtiatives The Company paid
USD 15 million in 2013 and USD 15 mullion in 2012 as part of this Agreement. In 2013, USD 5
million was reimbursed by the Company’s parent, JT The remaining amount due to EC at
December 31, 2013 is USD 120 million The related expense will be recognized as incurred

In the normal course of business the bank guarantees, 1ssued on behalf of JTI, amounted to USD
1 7 billion and USD 1 5 billion as of December 31,2013 and 2012 respectively

ror identification purpose only.

dnted . 1305 = iy,

36




JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V., AMSTERDAM

At 31 December 2013, non-cancellable commitments for purchases were as follows

In milfions of USD 2013 2042
Leaf purchase commilments 360 341
Non-tobacco matenals purchase commitments 85 89
Finished products purchase commitments 12 13
Capital expenditure 441 683
Other 22 13
Total 920 1,139
CONTINGENCIES

Tobacco Litigation

Various legal actions, proceedings, and claims are pending or may be instituted against JT
International Holding BV (“JTIH”) and 1ts subsidiaries. JTIH 1s a subsidiary of the Company
Claims related to smoking and health usually fall within the following categories (1) smoking and
health cases alleging personal wnjury brought on behalf of individual plamuffs; (i1) smoking and
health cases primarily alleging personal injury and purporting to be brought on behalf of a group
or a class of individual plamntiffs; (11) smoking and health cases brought by governmental and
non-governmental plaintiffs seeking recovery of health-care costs allegedly caused by cigarette
smoking, and (iv) other claims alleging a defect in the product

While JTIH and 1ts subsidiaries have a number of valid defenses and claims in these pending
cases, litigation 1s subject to many uncertainties and 1t is not possible to predict with certainty
their outcome JTIH and its subsidiaries could incur substantial costs in connection wath litigation
alleging damages resulting from the use of tobacco products or exposure to tobacco smoke or
alleging loss of taxes from allegedly illegal importation of tobacco products To date, JTIH has
never lost a case or pad any settlement award 1n connection with smoking and health-related
litigation against it or any of its subsidiaries

Smoking and Health Litigation Status

There are a number of smoking and health-related acttons pending against JTIH subsidiaries A
case brought by an individual remains nactive in Ireland (1) Smoking and health class actions
seeking collective recovery are pending in Canada (8), some of which are currently dormant (6)
Health-care cost recovery actions are pending in Canada (9) and Spain (1)

Class or group actions

Canada - In February 2005, a Quebec tnal court authorized two class actions against a JTIH
subsidiary The actions were filed 1n late September 2005 The first class, comprising Quebec
residents allegedly suffering from certain diseases, seeks collective recovery of approximately
USD 5 billion (CAD 5 billion) from ali defendants (which include two competing cigarette
manufacturers) m addition to damages for individual members and punitive damages. The second
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Contingencies (continued)

class, composed of allegedly addicted smokers in Quebec, secks collective recovery of
approximately USD 17 bilion (CAD 18 bithon) from all defendants (which include two
competing cigarette manufacturers) in addition to (ndividual and punitive damages The joint tral
began 1n March 2012, and 1s on-going. In July 2013, the Court expanded the class definitions,
which may allow an increase of the amounts claimed

In July 2009, four class actions seeking unquantified damages were filed in Saskatchewan,
Manitoba, Alberta and Nova Scotia against a JTIH subsichary as well as a number of other
manufacturers participating in the Canadian cigarette market The claim in Alberta expired, while
the Manitoba, Saskatchewan and Nova Scotia class actions are currently dormant

In July 2010, two class actions seeking unquantified damages were filed and served in British
Columbia against a JTIH subsidiary as well as a number of other manufacturers participating in
the Canadian cigarette market Both class actions are currently dormant

In June 2012, a class action seeking unquantified damages was filed 1n Ontario aganst a JTIH
subsidiary as well as a number of other manufacturers participating in the Canadian cigarette
market It was served on a JTIH subsidiary in November 2012, but 1s currently dormant

Israel - In December 2005, a class n Israel purporting to be composed of smokers of certain
brand categories called “Lights” named a JTIH subsidiary as a defendant in an action seeking
USD 2 billion (ILS 6 billion) in total damages from all defendants, which include a number of
distributors and manufacturers of competing products in the Israeli market The action was served
on a distributor that may have indemmty nghts against a JTIH subsidiary other than the one
named m the action The action was not, however, served on the named JTIH subsidiary This
action has been stayed stnce February 2005 pending the outcome of a request for certification of a
class in a similar action against another tobacco manufacturer in the Israeli market In December
2012, the Tel Aviv District Court refused the class certification request in the other case In
March 2013, the Tel Aviv District Court subsequently struck out this case  The decision was not
appealed and became final

Health-care cost recovery actions

Canada - In Januvary 2001, the Province of British Columbia brought an action under 1ts Tobacco
Damages and Health-Care Costs Recovery Act against a JTIH substdiary, as well as a number of
other manufacturers and others participating 1n the Canadian cigarette market, seeking
unquantified damages Some defendants challenged the constitutionality of the Act and the
Supreme Court of Canada finally rejected that challenge in September 2005 The health-care cost
recovery action remains pending at first instance The pre-trial process 1s ongoing, a trial date has
not yet been scheduled

In August 2009, a JTIH subsidiary, together with the two other Canadian tobacco manufacturers,
commenced an action 1n the Quebec Superior Court against the Attorney General of Quebec
challenging the vahdity of the Tobacco-Related Damages and Health-Care Costs Recovery Act
The claim 1s based on grounds of violation of the rule of law under the Canadian Constitution,
and jundical rights and due process in relation to property rights under the Quebec Charter of
Rights and Freedom In October 2013, following a hearing on the merits, the Court took under
advisement the Claimants’ Motion for Declaratory Judgment, In March 2014, the Court
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Contingencies (continued)

dismissed the Claimants’ Motion and ruled that the bill of law provisions which were disputed by
the Claimants as unconstitutional will continue to be applicable to the proceedings The period
for Claimants to appeal expires in April 2014

In March 2008, the Province of New Brunswick filed a health-care cost recovery actton agamnst a
JTIH substdiary and other manufacturers under its own Tobacco Damages and Health-Care Costs
Recovery Act, seeking unquantified damages These proceedings are at an early stage Pre-trial
discovery 15 on-going

In September 2009, the Province of Ontario filed a similar health-care cost recovery action
against a JTIH subsidiary and other manufacturers under its own Health-Care Costs Recovery
Act, secking USD 47 billion (CAD 50 billion) in damages Some of the defendants, whose seat 1s
not in Canada (*international defendants™), challenged the jurisdiction of the court The tnal
court and the Court of Appeal dismissed their applications In December 2013, the Supreme
Court of Canada disrmussed those defendants’ applications for leave to appeal. As a result,
Ontario Courts have jurisdiction over those defendants The proceedings remain at an early
stage

In February 2011, the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador filed a similar health-care cost
recovery action aganst a JTIH subsidiary and other manufacturers under its own Health-Care
Costs Recovery Act, seeking unquantified damages The proceedings are at an early stage The
pre-trial process 1s ongoing, and a trial date 15 not vet scheduled

In May 2012, the Province of Manitoba filed a health-care cost recovery action aganst a JTIH
subsidiary and other manufacturers under its own Tobacco Damages and Health-Care Costs
Recovery Act, seeking an unspecified amount of damages The JTIH subsidiary was served with
the claim in July 2012 The proceedings are at an early stage The pre-trial process 1s ongoing,
and a tnal date 1s not yet scheduled

In June 2012, the Province of Alberta filed a health-care cost recovery action against a JTIH
subsidiary and other manufacturers under its own Tobacco Damages and Health-Care Costs
Recovery Act, seeking USD 9 billion (CAD 10 billion) in damages The JTIH subsidiary was
served with the claim 1n July 2012 The proceedings are at an early stage The pre-trial process 1s
ongoing, and a trial date 1s not yet scheduled

In June 2012, the Province of Quebec filed a health-care cost recovery action against a JTIH
subsidiary and other manufacturers under its own Tobacco Damages and Health-Care Costs
Recovery Act, seeking USD 56 billion (CAD 60 billion) in damages The JTIH subsidiary was
served with the claim n June 2012 The international defendants’ challenge of the court’s
Jurisdiction was dismissed. In October 2013, the Court of Appeal dismissed those defendants’
leave to appeal The procecdings remain at an early stage as the pre-trial process 1s ongoing, and
a trial date 1s not yet scheduled.

In June 2012, the Province of Saskatchewan filed a hcalth-care cost recovery action against a
JTIH subsidiary and other manufacturers under its own Tobacco Damages and Health-Care Costs
Recovery Act, seeking an unspecified amount of damages The JTIH subsidiary was served with
the claim in July 2012 The proceedings are at an carly stage. The motion of the international
defendants challenging jurisdiction was dismissed at first instance Those defendants sought leave
to appeal this decision As a result of the Supreme Court of Canada’s decision dismissing the
Junsdictional challenge in Ontario, those dcfendants challenging jurisdiction agreed not to oppose
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Contingencies (continued)

an application dismissing their motion for leave to appeal The proceedings remain at an early
stage as the pre-trial process 15 ongoing, and a trial date 15 not yet scheduled

In September 2012, the Province of Prince Edward Island filed a health-care cost recovery action
against a JTIH subsidiary and other manufacturers under its own Tobacco Damages and Health-
Care Costs Recovery Act, seeking an unspecified amount of damages The JTIH subsidiary was
served with the claim i1 November 2012 The proceedings are at an early stage The pre-tnal
process 1s ongoing and a trial date 1s not yet scheduled

Spain - In February 2007, a JTIH subsidiary in Spamn was formally joined as a defendant, along
with a number of other manufacturers, in a contentious administrative proceeding brought by the
Junta de Andalucia agatnst the Spanish state (as former tobacco monopoly) to recover health-care
cxpenditures for a number of individuals treated for alleged tobacco-related diseases The Junta’s
claim was dismissed at first instance mn November 2007 on procedural grounds The Junta’s
appeal was ultimately rejected by the Supreme Court 1n September 2009

Following the above proceeding, in July 2008, the JTIH subsidiary in Spain was, together with
the same other manufacturers, informed of the existence of a second contentious-administrative
procceding brought by the Junta de Andalucia and agamst the Spanish state This claim seeks
recovery of the same health-care expenditure mentioned in the above proceeding and tries to
remedy the procedural defects recogmized by the Court 1n the previous proceeding In January
2009, the Court notified the JTIH subsidiary that the titme for the filing of the Junta’s claim was
effectively suspended by theiwr filing a procedural motion In May 2009, the Defendants were
notified that the Junta filed their claim following such suspension Until early 2010, the
proceedings were effectively staycd pursuant to a brief filed by the State Attorney claiming that
the second case should not proceed until the appeal in the first contentious-admunistrative case
was resolved In January 2010, the Court dismissed the brief pursuant to the Supreme Court’s
decision n the first contentious-administrative case, resuming the proceedings tn the second case
In April 2010, the State Attorney filed its defense In May 2010, the Court ordered the remaining
Co-defendants to file their defenses within 20 days In May 2010, the Co-defendants filed
prehmunary objections and a request that the court file be completed In June 2012, the Court
ordered the Claimants to file the missing evidence in order to complete the court file The
Claimants failed to comply with this order, until May 2013 In June 2013, by order of the Court,
Claimants filed their defense (including expert evidence) In January 2014, the Court dismissed
the Junta’s claim on procedural grounds The Junta did not file an appeal with the Court of
Cassation thereby ending the case

Smoking and Health Litigation Claims and Defenses Generally

Plaintiffs’ allegations of liabihity in smoking and health cases are based on various theories of
recovery, including negligence, gross neghgence, strict liability, fraud, misrepresentation,
defective design, failure to warn, breach of express and implied warranties, breach of special
duty, conspiracy, concert of actton and violations of deceptive trade practice laws and consumer
protection statutes

Plaintiffs in smoking and health actions seek various forms of relief, including compensatory and
punitive damages, treble/multiple damages and other statutory damages and penalties, creation of
medical monitoring and smoking cessation funds, disgorgement of profits and injunctive and
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equitable relief Defenses raised in these cases include, among other things, lack of proximate
cause, assumption of the nisk, comparative fault or contributory negligence, and statutes of
limitations or repose.

Health-Care Cost Recovery Litigation Claims and Defenses Generally

In certain of the pending proceedings, governmental and non-governmental plaintiffs, including
insurers, are seeking reimbursement of health-care cost expenditures allegedly caused by tobacco
products and, in some cases, of future expenditures and damages as well. Other relief sought by
some but not all plantiffs includes punitive damages, treble/multiple damages and other statutory
damages and penalties, injunction prohibiting alleged marketing and sales to minors, disclosure
of research, disgorgement of profits, funding of anti-smoking programs, disclosure of nicotine
yields, and payment of attorney and expert witness fees

Plaintiffs have asserted legal and equitable claims including that the defendants were “unjustly
enriched” by plamtffs’ payment of health-care costs allegedly attributable to smoking,
indemnity, neghgence, strict hability, breach of express and implied warranty, vtolation of a
voluntary undertaking or special duty, fraud, neghgent misrepresentation, conspiracy, public
nuisance, claims under statutes governing consumer fraud, antitrust, deceptive trade practices,
and false advertising In nine instances in Canada, claims are asserted under a statute enacted
specifically to permit such an action

Defenses raised include lack of proximate cause, remoteness of injury, failure to state a valid
claim, lack of benefit, adequate remedy at law, “unclean hands™ {namely, that plaintiffs cannot
obtain equitable relief because they participated in, and benefited from, the sale of cigarettes),
lack of antitrust injury, lack of statutory authority to bring suit and statute of limitations. In
addition, defendants argue that they should be entitled to “set off” any alleged damages to the
extent the plaintiff benefits economucally from the sale of cigarettes through the receipt of excise
taxes or otherwise Defendants also argue that these cases are improper because plaintiffs must
proceed under principles of subrogation and assignment Under traditional theories of recovery, a
payer of medical costs (such as an insurer) can seck recovery of health-care costs from a third
party solely by “standing in the shoes” of the injured party. Defendants argue that plaintiffs
should be required to bring any actions as subrogates of individual health-care recipients and
should be subject to all defenses available against the alleged injured party.

Other Tobacco-Related Litigation

Canada - In April 2010, a class composed of tobacco growers tn the province of Ontano served a
JTIH subsidiary with an action seeking USD 47 million (CAD 50 million) for an alleged breach
of contract betwecn the Ontario Flue-Cured Tobacco Growers Marketing Board and the
subsidiary Similar proceedings were 1ssued separately against two other manufacturers
participating in the Canadian cigarette market The proceedings are on-going

Rest of world - In 2006, a JTIH subsidiary in Spain was sued under a criminal procedure on
smuggling-related allegations after a tax inspection by the Spanish authorities The subsidiary
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Contingencies (continued)

was required to establish a guarantee for 1ts maximum potential hability of approximately USD 8
milhion (EUR 6 million), which was delivered to the Court mn July 2008. The tnal hearing
scheduled for April 2013 was deferred to December 2013 Following an additional
postponement, the tnial hearing 1s currently scheduled to begin in May 2014

A JTIH subsidiary has disputed the Turkish Ministry of Finance’s assessment of corporate tax for
2009 The amount of alleged tax due was assessed at USD 7 millton (TRY 14 mullion) plus
default interest In November 2011, the subsidhary filed a claim for the cancellation of the
assessment after the introduction of the Turkish Tax Amnesty Law [n February 2013, the Court
of First Instance ruled i favor of JTI and the corporate tax assessment was cancelled In March
2013, the Tax Directorate appealed the decision The ruling of the Appellate Court 1s awaited
Litigation is subject to many uncertainties and 1t 1s possible that some of the tobacco-related legal
actions, proceedings, or claims could be decided against JTIH or its subsidiaries Determinations
of liability or adverse rulings against other cigarette manufacturers that are defendants in simular
actions, even 1If such rulings are not final, could adversely affect the litigation against JTIH or its
subsidiaries or indemnitees and could encourage and mcrease the number of such claims There
have been a number of political, legislative, regulatory and other developments relating to the
tobacco industry and cigarette smoking that have received wide media attention, such as the
various liigation settlements 1n the United States and the release and wide availability of various
industry documents These developments may negatively affect the perception of potential tiers
of fact with respect to the tobacco industry, possibly to the detriment of certain pending htigation,
and may prompt the commencement of additional similar litrgation

Although 1t 1s impossible to predict the outcome of such events on pending litigation and the rate
at which new lawsuits are filed against JTIH or its subsidiarics, a significant incrcase n litigation
or adverse outcomes for tobacco defendants could have a matenial adverse effect on JTIH JTIH
and 1ts subsidiaries believe that they have a number of valid defenses to any such actions and
intend to defend such actions vigorously.

Management 1s unable to make a meaningful estimate of the amount or range of loss that could
result from an unfavorable outcome of pending tobacco-related litigation, and JTIH has not
provided any amounts tn 1ts consolidated financial statements for unfavorable outcomes, if any

Other Litigation

A JTIH subsidiary in the United Kingdom termunated a distribution contract in March 2005, and
commenced an action before the English Iligh Court for damages and a declaration that the
termination was valid because of numerous material breaches The former distributor
counterclaimed for unlawful termunation, ultimatcly seeking around USD 500 mullion in
unparticularized damages from the termination The High Court dismissed the counterclaim and
entered judgment for the subsidiary in Apnil 2008

In distantly related liigation, a business partner of the former distnbutor filed an action in Cyprus
agamnst the former distributor and the subsidiary, secking more than USD 25 million n
unparticularized damages for alleged breach of an exclusive distribution agreement for Yemen
An order permitting service on the subsidiary was set aside in February 2008

In June 2008, a JTIH subsidiary received from the Tanzania Fair Competition Commisston
(“FCC™) a complaint concerming a transaction 1t 2005 involving the purchase of manufacturing
equipment and trademarks from another company The complamt alleges the misuse of a
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Contingencies (continued)

dominant position and seeks a penalty of 7% of the subsidiary’s 2005 turnover of USD 56 mullion
(TZS 88 bullion) In a decision dated 31 March 2009, the FCC 1ssued 1ts findings and proposed
penalties against the subsidiary, to which the subsidiary objected and requested a full hearing In
October 2009, the FCC held that 1t has jurisdiction to hear and determine the complaint agatnst
the subsidiary The subsidiary thereafter filed a petition with the Tanzanian High Court to seek a
determination of all the prelimnary issues raised before the FCC  In September 2012, the
petition of the JTIH subsidiary was struck out with costs by the High Court, which held that the
subsidiary did not exhaust all remedies prior to coming before the court. In December 2012, the
JTIH subsidiary appealed the High Court decision and the outcome 15 pending at the Tanzanian
Court of Appeal

JTIH and its subsidiaries are also subject to other claims and suits which arise periodically
relating to contracts, income and other taxes, advertising regulation, and other matters JTIH and
its subsidiaries believe that, notwithstanding the quality of defenses available to 1t in lingation
matters, it is possible that the results of its operations or cash flows or its financial position could
be matenally affected by the ultimate outcome of certain pending litigation matters Management
1s unable to predict the outcome of the itigation

Related party transactions (10)

The Company and its subsidiaries have the following related party arrangements with 1its parent
IT

¢ Royalty agreement that requires JTI to pay royalties to JT for the use of certain tobacco
brands, a product cost sharing agreement under which JTI 1s reimbursed for certain product
development costs,

e Cost sharing agreement under which JT partially reimburses JTI for payments made under
the EC ant-contraband and anti-counterfeit agreement (see Note 9, financial commitment

paragraph);

* Service agreement that entitles JTI to receive from JT fees for certain accounting and
administrative services

JTT’s operating income includes the following related-party transactions with JT and other related
parties
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Related party transactions (continued)

(in millions of USD) 2013 2012
Sale of leaf inventory and finished goods to
« JT 379 389
o Other related parties 1,269 968
¢ Others 14 22
1,662 1,379
Included in JTI’s operating expenses are the following related-party transactions with JT
(in milhons of USD) 2013 2012
Royalties to JT 359 355
Purchases of tobacco matenal, non-tobacco material and finished goods
from JT
e IT 190 257
s Other related parties 54 69
603 631
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Financial Instruments (11)

Foreign currency arrangements
The Company conducts business on a multinational basis in a wide vanety of foreign currencies
and 1s therefore exposed to the following nsks due to foreign exchange fluctuations

* The nisk that the profit or loss and cash flow n each functional currency s affected by foreign
exchange fluctuations as a result of extermnal transactions and intercompany transactions in
currencies that are different from that functional currency

e The risk that the equity of the Company 1s affected by foreign exchange fluctuations when
equity balances denominated in each functional currency is translated into US Dollars on
consolidation

s The risk that the profit or loss of the Company 1s affected by foreign exchange fluctuations
when profit or loss denominated in each functional currency of the group 1s translated into US
Dollars on consclidation

The Company uses derivatives to reduce cash flow volatility associated with foreign exchange
rate changes In 2013 and 2012, the Company used foreign exchange forwards and swaps to
economically hedge 1ts exposure to fluctuations 1n Russian Ruble, Euro, Sterling, Swiss Francs,
Turkish Lira, Taiwan Dollars, Brazihan Real and certain other currencies All foretgn currency
derivative contracts have maturitics of twelve months or less

The Company does not designate denvative instruments in accounting hedge relationships
Accordingly, all changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded 1n the income statement

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk 1s the risk that the Company’s interest expense will fluctuate because of changes
m market interest rates The Company’s exposure to the nisk of changes in market interest rates
relates primanly to the Company’s short-term debt obligations (including bonds). In connection
with the acquisition of Gallaher in 2007, the Company incurred floating-rate indebtedness and
assumed the acquiree’s fixed-rate debt obligations To reduce its cost of borrowing and to
manage its risk related to interest rate fluctuations, the Company uses fixed-to-floating nterest
rate swaps maturing through 2013.

At December 31, 2013 after taking into account the cffect of interest rate swaps, approximately
88% (2012 58%) of the Company’s borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Credit nsk

Credit nsk relates to the risk that a counter-party will default on #s contractual obligations
resulting 1n financial loss to the Company The Company 15 cxposcd to credit risk from s trade
receivables due from customers, as well as from cash and cash deposits and derivative financial
mstruments transacted with financial institutions

The Company performs appropriate credit checks on customers before sales commence The
process for monitoring and managing credit risk once sales to the customer have been established
varies depending on local practices in the countries concerned Certain territories have bank
guarantees, other guarantees and credit insurance provided tn the Company’s favor in respect of
trade receivables The issuance and terms of msurance and guarantees are dependent on local
practices Apart from Megapohs group, Palmer & Harvey, and Logista Group (the largest
customers of the Company), the Company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to
any single counterparty

Cash deposits and other financial instruments give rise to credit risk on the amounts due from
counterparties To mutigate the counterparty credit risk, the Company has a policy of only
entering nto contracts with carefully selected major financial institutions based upon therr credit
ratings and other factors, and maintains strict dollar and term limits that correspond to each
mstitution’s credit rating Generally, the Company targets a long-term counterparty credit rating
of at least A/A2 Counterparty credit nsk 1s managed on a global basis by hmiung the aggregate
amount and duration of exposure to any one counterparty, taking into account its credit rating
The credit ratings of all counterparties are reviewed regularly At December 31, 2013 the
Company holds an amount of $300 mullton (2012 nil) n short-term money market funds (AAA
rated)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

As of December 31, 2013, the fair value of the long-term portion of the bonds, 1ssued by the
Company, amounted to USD (nil) million (2012 USD 717 million) and a corresponding carrying
amount of USD (nil) (2012 USD 662)

The fair value of the short-term portion of the bonds, i1ssued by the Company, amounted to USD
718 millwon (2012 USD 402 milhon) and a corresponding carrying amount of USD 687 (2012
USD 402)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value subsequent to initial recognition are as
follows
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Financial instruments (Continued)

{in millhons of USD)

Assets
Derivative assets

Liabilities
Derivative habilities

(in mtlhions of USD)

Assets
Derivative assets

Liabilities
Derivative liabilities

December 31, 2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
35 35
48 48
December 31, 2012
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
41 41
47 47
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Financial instruments (Continued)

The aggregate notional amounts and fair values of the Company’s outstanding foreign exchange
and interest rate derivative contracts were as follows

Asset Derivatives

(in millions of USD) Fair  Notional
Balance Sheet location Value Value
Foreign exchange swaps Accrued income and
others 35 2,651

Liabihity Derivatives

(in milhons of USD) Fair  Notional
Balance Sheet location Value Value
Foreign exchange swaps Other current habilities 46 3,797
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Notes to the specific items of the consolidated statement of income

Net sales (12)
All sales are generated with tobacco products, mainly being cigarettes

Net sales per geographical areas are as follows

(in millions of USD) 2013 2012#*

Europe 5,667 5,637
CIs 4,113 3.851
Asia Pacific 1,245 1,082
Americas 388 385
Meneat 1,715 1,917
Others 236 224
Total 13,364 13,096

* The comparative figures have been adjusted to improve the comparabiity

Cost of sales

In 2013 USD 53 million (2012 USD 57 million) was recognized as an expense within cost of
sales related to write down of inventories

Salaries, social security charges and pension costs

The costs for wages and salanes, social secunity charges and pension costs are included n cost of
sales, selling expenses and general and administrative expenses, and total as follows:

{(in mullions of USD) 2013 2012
Wages and salaries 1,620 1,603
Social security charges 237 227
Pension cost 47 187
1,904 2,017
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Amortization and depreciation expenses

Amortization expenses related to intangible fixed assets and depreciation expenses related to
tangible fixed assets are included in costs of sales, selling and related expenses and general and

adminustrative expenses, and totaled as follows-

(in millions of USD) 2013 2012

Amortization for the year 1,254 1,245

Depreciation for the year 371 343
1,625 1,588

Auditor fees

Total fees charged by Deleitte to the Group were as follows

{(in milhions of USD) 2013 2012

Audit fees 8 9

Tax fees 2 2

All other fees 2 2

12 13

The fees paid for the audit of the statutory financial statements of JT International Group Helding
B V, rendered by Deloitte Accountants B V ;| Amsterdam, amounted to USD 111 thousands for

the years 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Employee information

The average number of personnel employed by JTI during the year was:

The Netherlands
Europe

CIS

Americas

Asia Pacific
Others

* The comparative figures have been adjusted to improve the compacability

Net interest result (13)

(in mithons of USD)

Interest income from third parties
Interest expenses to third parties

JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTFRDAM

2013 2012*
114 110
10,789 10,691
7,746 7,955
2,179 1,955
1,872 1,800
5.780 4,082
28,480 26,593
2013 2012
82 56
(119) (150)
37 (94)

1) Prior year amounts have been restated to reflect retrospective application of revised IAS 19
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Income taxes (14)

The differences between the provision (benefit) for income taxes and income taxes computed at
statutory Dutch income tax rates are explained as follows

(in mitlions of USD) 2013 2012
Result on ordinary activities before taxation 2,443 2,118
Income taxes computed at statutory Dutch tax rates (25%) 611 530
Valuation allowance on deferred tax

positions (103) 75
Non-deductible expenses, net of non-taxable income 431 307
Uncertain tax positions, net (8 (55)
Cost of earnings repatriation 113 93
Foreign tax rate dhfferential (279) (223)
Change 1n substantively enacted or enacted tax rates (KLY (p4)]
Others §1)) 15
Provisions for income taxes 721 715
Effective tax rate in % 295 338

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, JTI had net operating losses (NOL) of USD 09 billion and
USD 1 3 billion respectively, which are available to reduce future taxable income of JTI and
certain international subsidiaries Approximately USD 336 million of NOL expires within 15
years, with the remainder having no expiration date under current laws. Deferred taxes of USD
123 million were recognized in respect of these losses (2012 USD 161 mullion).

At December 31, 2013 JTI had tax credits carried forward of USD 6 mullion (2012: USD 12
million) having an expiry date within 15 years and USD 33 nmulhion (2012 USD 33 mllion)

having no expiry date Deferred taxes of USD 33 million were recogmzed in respect of these
credits (2012. USD nil).

The provisions for income taxes on items of other comprehensive gains and losses amounted to a
loss of USD 21 mullion (2012 USD 95 million gawns)

1) Prior year amounts have been restated to reflect retrospective application of revised IAS 19
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JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2013
(before proposed appropriation of the result)

Assets
(mn millions of USD) December, December,
31,2013 31,2012

Fixed assets

Financial fixed assets (1) 21,501 19,857
Current assets

Receivables from group companies 24 24
Total assets 21,525 19,881

Shareholder’s equity and liabilities
(in milhons of USD)
December, December,
31,2013 31,2012

Equity attributable to equity holder (2)

Share capital 1,800 1,800
Share premium 14,314 14,314
Retained earnings 4,660 3,256
Currency translation adjustment (933) (848)
Unappropriated result 1,684 1,359

21,525 19,881

Total eqnity and liabilities 21,525 19,881

1} Prior year emounts have been restated to reflect retrospective apphcation of revised 1AS 19
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JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

COMPANY STATEMENT OF INCOME
Year ended December 31, 2013

(in millions of USD)

Share 1n net result of subsidiaries, net of tax
Other results

Net result for the year

2013 2012!
1,684 1,359
1,684 1,359

1) Prior year smounts have been restated to reflect retrospective applicahon of revised [AS 19

Related
dated .

Uy




JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B.V , AMSTERDAM

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013
Accounting principles

The company financial statements have been prepared according with Title 9, Book 2 of the
Netherlands Civil Code

General accounting principles for the preparation of the financial statements

For the general principles for the preparation of the financial statements, the principles for
valuation of assets and liabilities and determination of the result, as well as for the notes to the
specific assets and liabilities and the results, reference 1s made to the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, if not presented otherwise here after

Company statement of income
Since the results of the Company are included 1n the consolidated statement of income, the

Company financial statements only contain an abridged statement of income in accordance with
article 2 402 of the Netherlands Civil Code

For identification purpose only.
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JT INTFRNA TIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM

Notes to the specific items of the balance sheet

Financial fixed assets (1)

The financial fixed assets consist of participations tn group compamies. The movements in
financial fixed assets were as follows

(n millions of USD) 2013 2012
Balance as of December 31 19,857 18,820
Share 1 net result of subsidiaries, net of tax 1,684 1,359
Currency translation adjustments (85) (18)
Hedge net investment, net of tax - -
Additional minimum pension liability, net of tax 54 (284)
Adjustment ansing from change

in non-controlling interest (9) -
Dividends received - (16)
Disposal of participation 1n a subsidiary - 3
Others - H
Balance as of December 31 21,501 19,857

The hist of directly and indirectly held investments of the Company 1s filed with the Trade
Register in line with article 2 379 sub 5 of the Netherlands Civil Code.

1) Prior year amounts have been restated to refiect retrospective application of revised 1AS 19
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JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B.V , AMSTFRDAM

Equity attributable to equity holder (2)
Movements are as follows

Currency  Unappro-

(in mullions of USD) Share Share Retained  translation priated Total Total
capital premium earnings  adjustments result 2013 2012'

Balance as of

January 1, 1,800 14314 3,256 (848) 1,359 19,881 18,824

Adjustment opening balance

IAS 19 adjustments 5 %) - -

Appropriation of

net result prior year - - 1,354 -~ (1,354) - -

Hedge of net investment

losses, net of tax - - - - - - -
Foreign currency translation

adjustments - - - (85) - (85) (18)
Actuanal losses on post-

employment benefit

oblgations - - 54 - - 54 (284)
Adjustment ansing from change
n non-controlhing interest
Foreign currency translation
adjustment on share capital -
Net result for the year - - - - 1,684 1,684 1,359

!
[

) - - ® -

Balance as of
December 31 1,800 14,314 4,660 (933) 1,684 21,525 19,881

The share capital and share premium are treated as paid-in capital for tax purposes, therefore
repayments are not subject to dividend withholding tax

Share capital issued

The share capital amounts to USD 1,800,372 (thousands) and consists of 1,800,372,005 shares of
USD | each

1) Prior year amounts have been restated to reflect retrospective application of revised IAS 19
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JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V., AMSTERDAM

Other notes and signing of the financial statements

Personnel

In 2013 the Company employed no employees (2012 0).

Remuneration of the Managing Board

In 2013, the Managing Board of the Company received remuneration for their services to the

Company and its subsidiaries amounting to USD 70.2 million (2012 7 5 milhon) The Managing
Board members were not subject to the so-called crisis tax.
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Signing of the financial statements

Amsterdam, May 13, 2014

Managing Board:

EJL G Purard
PRI
A Sacki
‘ l M ?ﬁ)‘atak;@
i 23—
J Fukuchi

JT INTFRNA 1TONAL GROUP HOLDING B V , AMSTERDAM
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JT INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING B V | AMSTERDAM

Other information

Independent auditor’s report

Reference 15 made to the independent auditors’ report as included hereinafter

Statutory rules concerning appropriation of result

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company the result for the year 1s at the
disposal of the General Meeting. Dutch law stipulates that distributions may only be made to the
extent the company’s equity is in excess of the reserves 1t 1s required to maintain by law and its
Articles of Association Moreover, no distributions may be made if the Managing Board is of the
opinion that, by such distribution, the Company will not be able to fulfill its financal obligations
in the foreseeable future

Appropriation of result for the financial year 2012

The annual report 2012 was adopted, by the shareholder, by means of a shareholder’s resolution,
on May 14, 2013 The sharcholders determined the appropriation of result in accordance with the
proposal being made to that end

Proposed appropriation of result for the financial year 2013

Pending the decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the net result for the year 2013 is
presented as unappropriated result in equity Management proposes to add the result for the year

to the retained earnings

The financial statements do not yet reflect this proposal

Subsequent events

There were no subsequent events to be reported
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Independent auditor's report
To The Shareholder of JT International Group Holding B V

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2013 of JT International Group Holding
B V, Amsterdam, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheet as per
December 31, 2013, the consolidated and company profit and loss account for the year then
ended and the notes, compnsing a summary of the accounting policies and other explanatory
information

Management's responsibility

Management 15 responsible for the preparation and fair prescntation of these financial statements
and for the preparation of the managing board report, both in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2
of the Dutch Civil Code Furthermore management 1s responsible for such tnternal control as 1t
determines 1s necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opimon on these financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on
Auditing This requures that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures 1n the financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 1n order to design audit procedures
that are appropnate wn the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion

Delaltte Accountants BV s registered wth the Trade Ragister of tha Chambar of Cormmerce and Member of
Industry in Rotterdam number 24362853 Deleitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Deloitte.

Opinion with respect to the financial statements

In our opimon, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
JT International Group Holding B V. as at December 31, 2013 and of 1ts result for the year then
ended tn accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Section 2 393 sub 5 at e and f of the Dutch Civil Code,
we have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the managing board
report, to the extent we can assess, has been prepared 1n accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of this
Code, and whether the information as required under Section 2,392 sub 1 at b-h has been
annexed Further we report that the managing board repont, to the extent we can assess, 15
consistent with the financial statements as required by Section 2 391 sub 4 of the Dutch Civil
Code

Amsterdam, May 13, 2014

Deloitte Accountants B V
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W Keulers
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